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BEFORI THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFTFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Lake View Tetrace, CA 91342

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5873

DEVIN ANDREW LABORICO DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER
11370 Brainard Ave, :

Pharmacy Technician Registration No, TCH
147162 ,

Respondent, | [Gov, Code, §11520]

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Onorabout November 14, 2016, Complainant Virginia K. Herold, in her official
capacily as the Ixecutive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Af‘lf‘airs,
filed Accusation No. 5873 against Devin Andrew Laborico (“Respondent™) before the Board of
Pharmacy. (Accusation attached ag Exhibit A,) .

2. Onorabout April 3, 2015, the Board of Pharmacy (“Board”) issued Pharmacy
Technician Registration No, TCH 147162 to Respondent. The Pharmacy Technician Registration
was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, 5873
and expired on November 30, 2016, '

3. Business and Professions Code section 118, subdivision (b), provides that the

expitation of a license shall not deprive the Board jurisdiction to proceed with a diseiplinary
!
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actlon during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued or
reinstated,

4. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

"The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by
operafion of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement of a license
on a retired status, or the veluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not deptive the board
bf‘jurisdiction to commenée or proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary
proceeding against, the licensee or (o tender a decision suspending or revoking the lcense,"

5, Oﬁ or about December 8, 2016, Respondent was served by Certified and First Class
Mail copies of the Accusation No, 5873, Statement to Respondent, Notice of Defense, Request
for Discovery, and Discovery Statutes (Government Code sections 11507.5, 11 507.6, and
11507 .7) at Respondent's address of record which; pllrsuant to Business and Professions Code
section 4100, is required to be reporfed and maintained with the Board, Respondent's address of
record was and is: 11370 Brainard Ave,, Lake View Terrace, CA 91342,

6. Service of the Accusation was effective as a matter of law under the provisions of
Government Code section 11505, subdivision (¢) and/or Business & Professions Code section
124,

7. Govemmenf Code section 11506(c) states, in pertinent part:

(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent
files a notice of defense . ., and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all
parts of the accusation . . . not expressly admitted, Failure to file a notice of defense

. shall constitute a waiver of respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its
discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing,

8. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon him
of the Accusation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing or_i the merits of Accusation No,
5873, |

9, California Government Code section 11520(a) states, in pertinent part:

(a) 1fthe respondent either fails to file a notice of defense . , or to appear at
the hearing, the agency may take action based upon the respondent's express
admissions ot upon other evidence and affidavits may be used as evidence without
any notice fo respondent . , ,
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10, Pursuant to its authority under Government Code seotion 11520, the Board finds
Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing ﬁnd, based on the
relevant evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this matter, as well ag
taking official notice of all the investigatory reports, exhibits and statements contained thersin on
file at the Board's offices regarding the allegations contained in Accusation No, 5 873, finds that |
the éharges end allegations in Accusation No. 5873, are separately and severally, found to be true
and correct by clear and convineing evidence.

| 11.. Taking official notice of its own internal records, pursnant to Business and
Professions Code section 125.3, it is hereby determined that the reasonable costs for Investigation |
and Enforcement are $537,50 as of January 11, 2017. |
DETERMINATION OF ISSULS

1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Devin Andrew Laborico has

subjected his Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 147162 to discipline.

2: The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by defaul.

3. The Board of Pharmacy is authorized to revoke Respondent's Pharmacy Teoh1ﬁcian
Registration based upon the following violations alleged in the Accusation which are supported
by the evidence contained in the Default Decision Evidence Packet in this case:

a.  Business and Professions Code sections 490, sﬁbdivision (a), and 4301, subdivision
(D), in that Respondent was convicted of a crime substantially related to the qualifications,
functions, and duties of a pharmacy technician, Specifically, on or about April 26, 2016, in the
case of People v. Devin Andrew Laborico, Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles,
Case No. 5PK0558, Respondent was convicted by the court on his plea of guilty of violating

Health and Safety Code section 11350 (possession of eocaine, a controlled substance), a

- misdemeanor. The court ordered defetred entry of judgment for eighteen months and ordered

Respondent to pay fines, enroll in an anproved substance abuse treatment program, and submit to
periodic controlled substance testing.
I

"
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b.  Business and Professions Code sections 490, subdivision (a), and 4301, subdivision
(j), by and through Code section 4060 and Health and Safety Code sections 11055(b)(6) and
11350, in that Respondent possessed cocaine.

ORDER

IT IS SO ORDERED that Pharmacy Technician Registration No. TCH 147162, heretofore
issued to Respondent Devin Andrew Laborico, is revoked.

Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision (c), Respondent may serve a
written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within
seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may
vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on March 16, 2017.
It is so ORDERED on February 14, 2017.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

C

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D,

Board President
52346733.D0C
DOJ Matter ID:LA2016601625
Attachment:
Exhibit A: Accusation
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Accusation
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KAMALA D, HARRIS

Attorney General of Caltfornia
LmNDaA K. SCHNEIDER

Senlor Assistant Attorney General
ARMANDO ZAMBRANQ

~Superylsing Deputy Attorney Ganeral
State Bar No, 225323 '
300 So. Spring Strect, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone; (213) 897-2542-
Faesimile: (213) 897.2804

Aftorneys for Complatnant

BEYORIL, THL
~ BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER ATTAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: | Case No, 5873
DEVIN ANDREW LABORICO - ACCUSATION

11370 Brainard Ave,
Lake View Terrace, CA 91342

Pharmacy Technician Registration No,

TCH 147162
~ Respondent,
Compla.ihar;t alleges:
' PARTIES

1. Virginla Herold (Complalnant) brings this Acousation solely In ket official capacity
a9 the Executive Officer o:{".thea Board of Pharmacy, Depactment of Consumer Affalrs,

2. Onorasbout Apri% 3, 2015, the Boatd of Pharmacy lssued Pharmacy Technician
Reglstration Number TCH 147162 1o Devin Andrew Labotico (Respondent), The Pharmacy
Technlolan Reglstration was in full force and effeot at all times relevant to the charges brought
hetoin and will expire on Novomber 30, 2016, unless renowed., |
I |
"
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3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of

Consumer Affalrs, under the authorily of the following laws. All section references are to the

W ~3 oy b A W
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Business and Prolessions Code (Code) unless Gthetrwise tndicated,

4. Seotlon 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent part:

"(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked. . 2

3. Bection 4300,1 of the Code states:

"The explration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of 4 board-Issued license by
operatlon of law or by order or deelston of the board or a ooust of law, the placement of a livense
on 4 retlred status, or the voluntary surcender of a license by a licenses shall not deptive the board
of jurisdiotion to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or ofion or disciplinary
proceeding agalnst, the licensee ot to tender 4 decision sugpending or revoking the license,"

BUSINESS AND PROTESSIONS CODY.

6. Seotlon 490 of the Code states, In pertinent part:

“(a) In addition to any other action that a board i permitted to take against a licenses, o -
boatd tmay suspend or revoke g license on the ground that the liconsee has been convicted of 8
otime, {f the crime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties Of the business
o profession for which the license was lssuad, _ |

“(b} Notwithstandihg any othet provision of law, & board may exetclse any authortty to
discipline a llcenisee for conviction of a otline that s independent of the authorlty granted under
subdtvision (a) only if the erime is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, oy dutles
of the bustness or professlon for which the lpensee's license was issued, , . .

7. Sectlon 4060 of the Code states:

"No person shall possess any conirolled substance, excopt that furnished to a person upon
the preseription of a physician, dentist, podiatrlst, optometrist, veteringrlan, or natutopathic dostor
purguant to Sectlon 3 640.7; ot furnished pursuant to a drug order {ssued by a certified nurse
midwife putsuant to Section 2746.51, a nurse practitioner pursuant to Section 2836.1, or a

physiclan assistant pursuant to Sectlon 3502.1, or naturopathle doctor pursuant to Sectlon 3640,5,
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or a pharmacist pursuant to either subparagraph (D) of péwagmph {4) of, ot olause (Iv) of
mﬁpat‘agraph (A) of pacagraph (5) of, subdlvlsion (a) of Section 4052, This section shall not

apply to the possession of any controlled substance by a manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy,

“pharmgelst, plysieian, podlateist, dentis, optomettist, vetet(natian, naluropathic doetor, certified

| nurse midswife, nurse practitioner, or physiclan-assistant, when in stock in containers colrectly

labeled with the name and address of the supplier ot producer,

Nothing {n this seotlon guthotizes a certified nurse midwife, a nurse practitioner, a
physician assistant, or & naturdpathic doctor, to order his ot het own stock of dangetous dz‘tlgs and
devices.”

8. Sectlon 4301 of the Code states, 1n pertinent part;

"The board shjall talce action against any holder of a lloense whe ls guilty of waptofossional
conduct or whose license has bf:c-m procuted by fraud or mistopresentation or issued by misteke,
Unprofessional conduot shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following;

"| b

"(j) Tho violation of any of the statutes of this state, ot aﬁy other state, or of the United

States regulatlng controlled sybstances and dangetous drugs,

111
[

() 'The conviction of a orime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and

duties of a licensee under this chapter, The recotd of convietion of a violation of Chapter 13

(commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating eontro!led
substances or of & vlolatlon of the statutos of this state regulating conteolled substances or
dangerous drugs shall be conelustve evidence of unp'rofeésional conduct, In all other cases, the
record of convlstion shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the convietion occurred.
The board may inquire into the clreumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order
to fix the cjegt‘ee of diselpline ot, in the case of a cottyiction not invelving controlled substances
or dangerous drugs, to determine if the convietion ts of an offense substantially related to the- |
qualifications, functions, and dutles of a Hoensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or
a convietion following a plea of nolo contendere is desmed to be a convietion within the meaning
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of this provislon, The board may take action whetl the time for appeal has elapsed, or the
Judgment of conviction has besn affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation 1s made

suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespeotive of 4 subsequent order nnder Seotion 1203.4 of

~the Penal Code allowing the pérson to withdraw hls of hot plea of guilty and to entet a plea of not |
gullty, or setting astde the verdlet of guilty, or dismissing the sccusation, information, or
Indictment. ., * .
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
9, Callfornla Health and Sefaty Code seotion 11350 states, in pertinent part:

“(a) Except as otherwise provided in thls division, svery potson who possesses (1) any
“gontrolled substance spectfied in subdivision (b) ot (¢), or paragraph (1) of subdivision () of |
Section 11054, specified in peragraph (14), (15), ot (20) of subdivision (d) of Section 11054, or
specified in subdivision (b) or (¢) of Sectlon 11055, or specified in subdivision (h) of Section
11056, or (2) any controlisd substance classified in Schedule IIT, TV, ot V'which is & nareotic
drug, unless upon the written presc'riptioq of a-physioian, dentist, podiatrist, or veterinarian
licensed to practice in this siate, shall be -p_unishe:d by imprlsonmﬁent putsuant to subdivision (h) of
Seotlon 1170 of the Penal Code, ., "
COST RECOVERY

10, Seetion 125.3 of the Code states, in pertlnent patt, that the Board may reguest the
administrative law judge to divect a Hoentiate found to have commitied 2 violation or viclations of
the Heensing act to pay e sum not fo exeeed the reasonable cosis of the investigation and
enforcement of the case,

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

11, Cocaine is a Schedufe I controlled substance pusuant to Flealth and Safety Code

seotion 11055, subdivision (b)(6), and o dangerous drug pursuant to Code section 4022,
" | |

i
1
i
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KIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Unprofessional Conduet - Criminal Conyvietion)

12, Respondent Is subject to diseiplinary action undsr sections 490, subdivision (), and

4307, subdivision (), of thie Code inthal ¢ o atiout Apitl 26, 2016, Responident was convicted
of a erime substantially related to the qualifieations, funetlons, and duties of a pharmacy
technictan, as follows:

13, Onorabout Apeil 26, 2016, in the case of People v, Devin Andrew Laborico,
Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles, Cage No, 5PK0558, Respondent was

“convicted by the court on hls plea of guilty of violating Fealth and Safety Code section 11350 _
{possession of cocains, a controlled substance), a misdemeanor, The court ordered deforred entey | |
of judgment for elghteen menths and ordered Respondent to pay fines, enroll in an approved
substance abuse treatment program, and submit to periodic contralled substance testing. The
ciroumstances of the crims are ag follows: ‘

14,  On ot about November 1, 2015, while Respondent wag entering a concert at the Log
Angeles County Fah’érounds, an officer conduoted a voluntary seatch of Respondent and asked
Respondent what he had in his pants. Respondent removed a small cloat baggle contalning W‘hifa
powder from the front of his pants, handed the baggie to the ofticer, and advised the officer that
the baggio contalned cocaine. Respondent was arrested fot possession of a controlled substance,

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofe_séional Conduet - Unlawful Possession of Controlled Substance) -

15, Respondent is subjeet to diselpllnary action under sections 490, subdtvislon (a), and
4301, subdivislon (), of the Code, by and through Code seotion 4060 and Health and Safety Code
sections 11055(b)(6) and 11350, in that on ot abont November 1, 2015, Respondent possassed
cocaine, The ciroumstlances are described with more particularity in pacagraph 14, above,
oo
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PRAYER

2 WHERERORE, Complainant requests that a heatlng be held on the matters hetein alloged,
3 || and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issus a decision!
4 1, Revoking or susperiding Pharizaoy Technfolan Reglstration No, TCH 147162, issued
5 1| to Devin Androw Laborlco;
6 2. Orderiag Devin Andrew Labotico to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable vosts
7 || of investigation and enforcoment of this ease, pursuant to Code section 125.3 ; and,
8 3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and propet,
9 ) ‘) [ . W
- ' VIRGINIA HEROLD
11 Executive Officer
Board of Pharmacy
12 Depariment of Consumer Affalrs
State of Californls
13 Complainant
LA2016601625
14 |l 52268994.doc
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